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Colin F. Campbell, 004955 
Geoffrey M. T. Sturr, 014063 
Timothy J. Eckstein, 018321 
Joseph N. Roth, 025725 
Osborn Maledon, P.A. 
2929 North Central Avenue, 21st Floor 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012-2793 
(602) 640-9000 
ccampbell@omlaw.com 
gsturr@omlaw.com 
teckstein@omlaw.com 
jroth@omlaw.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA 
 

IN THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA 
 
Peter S. Davis, as Receiver of DenSco 
Investment Corporation, an Arizona 
corporation, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

U.S. Bank, NA, a national banking 
organization; Hilda H. Chavez and John 
Doe Chavez, a married couple; JPMorgan 
Chase Bank, N.A., a national banking 
organization; Samantha Nelson f/k/a 
Samantha Kumbalek and Kristofer Nelson, 
a married couple; and Vikram Dadlani and 
Jane Doe Dadlani, a married couple, 

Defendants 

No. CV2019-011499 

PLAINTIFF’S FIFTH 
SUPPLEMENTAL RULE 26.1 
DISCLOSURE STATEMENT RE  
US BANK DEFERRAL OF 
PROSECUTION AND CONSENT 
AGREEMENTS 

For its Fifth Supplemental Disclosure Statement, Plaintiff Peter S. Davis, as 

Receiver of DenSco Investment Corporation, sets forth the following in addition to its 

prior disclosure statements:  

mailto:ccampbell@omlaw.com
mailto:gsturr@omlaw.com
mailto:teckstein@omlaw.com
mailto:jroth@omlaw.com
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I. FACTUAL BASIS OF CLAIMS 

US Bank’s Violations of Federal Law Regarding Its Anti-Money 
Laundering Program 

During the relevant time period of the Third Amended Complaint, US Bank had 

a willfully deficient anti-money laundering program in violation of federal law.  On 

February 12, 2018, US Bancorp entered into a deferred prosecution agreement with the 

US Government.  Prosecution was deferred on a two count information charging US 

Bancorp with crimes: willfully failing to maintain an adequate anti-money laundering 

program and willfully failing to file a suspicious activity report. The deferred 

prosecution agreement contains a detailed statement of facts regarding the deficiencies 

in US Bancorps’ anti-money laundering program over a period of years.  The deferred 

prosecution agreement with the agreed statement of facts is produced with this 

disclosure and incorporated by reference. 

US Bank entered into a consent order for a civil monetary penalty on 

February 13, 2018.  The consent order stated: 

(a) The Bank failed to adopt and implement a compliance program that 
adequately covered the required BSA/AML program elements due to an 
inadequate system of internal controls, ineffective independent testing, and 
inadequate training, and the Bank failed to file all necessary Suspicious Activity 
Reports (“SARs”) related to suspicious customer activity.  

(b) Some of the critical deficiencies in the elements of the Bank’s BSA/AML 
compliance program that resulted in a violation of 12 U.S.C. § 1818(s)(3)(A) 
and 12 C.F.R. § 21.21, included the following:  

• The Bank had an inadequate system of internal controls, ineffective 
independent testing, and inadequate training;  

• The Bank had systemic deficiencies in its transaction monitoring systems, 
which resulted in monitoring gaps. These systemic deficiencies included the 
capping, or limiting, of suspicious activity alerts based on staffing 
considerations, which resulted in a significant amount of unreported suspicious 
activity; and  

• The Bank had systemic deficiencies in its customer due diligence processes.  
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(c) The Bank failed to identify certain suspicious activity and file the necessary 
SARs concerning suspicious customer activities, in violation of 12 C.F.R. 
§ 21.11.  

(2) The Bank conducted look-backs pursuant to the 2015 Consent Order and, as 
a result, had to file additional SARs which constituted additional violations of 
12 C.F.R. § 21.11. 

(3) The Bank violated 31 U.S.C. § 5318(i) and its implementing regulation, 31 
C.F.R. § 1010.610 (correspondent banking) for deficiencies in its wire transfer 
monitoring in its International Banking Group.  

The Consent Order for a Monetary Penalty is produced with this disclosure statement 

and incorporated by reference. 

US Bank entered into a prior Consent Order on October 23, 2015.  The consent 

ordered stated: 

The Comptroller finds, and the Bank neither admits nor denies, the following:  

(1) The OCC’s examination findings from 2014 and 2015 establish that the Bank 
has deficiencies in its BSA/AML compliance program. These deficiencies have 
resulted in a BSA/AML compliance program violation under 12 U.S.C. 
§ 1818(s) and its implementing regulations 12 C.F.R. § 21.21 (BSA Compliance 
Program).  In addition, the Bank has violated 12 C.F.R. § 21.11 (Suspicious 
Activity Report Filings).  

(2) The Bank has failed to adopt and implement a compliance program that 
adequately covers the required BSA/AML program elements due to an 
inadequate system of internal controls, ineffective independent testing, and 
inadequate training, and the Bank failed to file all necessary Suspicious Activity 
Reports (“SARs”) related to suspicious customer activity.  

(3) Some of the critical deficiencies in the elements of the Bank’s BSA/AML 
compliance program, resulting in a violation of 12 U.S.C. § 1818(s)(3)(A) and 
12 C.F.R. § 21.21, include the following:  

(a) The Bank has an inadequate system of internal controls, ineffective 
independent testing, and inadequate training.  

(b) The Bank has systemic deficiencies in its transaction monitoring systems, 
which resulted in monitoring gaps.  

(c) The Bank has systemic deficiencies in its customer due diligence processes.  
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(4) The Bank failed to identify certain suspicious activity and file the required 
SARs concerning suspicious customer activities, in violation of 12 C.F.R. 
§ 21.11.  

A copy of the Consent Order is produced with this disclosure statement and 

incorporated by reference. 

US Bank has not produced any discovery in this case as to these matters.  It did 

not disclose these matters in its original Rule 26.1 disclosure. 

II. LEGAL BASIS OF CLAIMS 

During the period of time relevant to the Third Amended Complaint, US Bank 

maintained a wholly inadequate anti-money laundering program.  It resulted in US 

Bank facing a two count criminal information for violation of federal law, and the entry 

into a deferred prosecution agreement and consent orders as set out above. 

IV. PERSONS WITH RELEVANT KNOWLEDGE 

The pattern of activity for US Bank leading up to its deferred prosecution 

agreement includes multiple corporate officers of US Bank at the highest level of the 

bank.  The corporate officers and other employees involved in this misconduct are 

material witnesses in this case.  US Bank has not disclosed the names and addresses of 

these relevant witnesses. 

VIII. EXHIBITS 

The 2015 Consent Order, R-003554-003582. 

The 2018 Consent Order, R-003583-003597. 

The deferred prosecution agreement, R-003598-003641.  

Assessment of Civil Money Penalty, R-003642-003661. 

FinCEN Penalizes Compliance Officer for Anti-Money Laundering Failures 

article, R-003662-003664. 

IX. RELEVANT DOCUMENTS 

The 2015 Consent Order, R-003554-003582. 

The 2018 Consent Order, R-003583-003597. 
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The deferred prosecution agreement, R-003598-003641.  

Assessment of Civil Money Penalty, R-003642-003661. 

FinCEN Penalizes Compliance Officer for Anti-Money Laundering Failures 

article, R-003662-003664. 

DATED this 24th day of May, 2021. 

 OSBORN MALEDON, P.A. 
 
 
By     

Colin F. Campbell 
Geoffrey M. T. Sturr 
Timothy J. Eckstein 
Joseph N. Roth 
2929 North Central Avenue, 21st Floor 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012-2793 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
 
 
COPY of the foregoing served via email  
this 24th day of May, 2021, on: 
 
Greg Marshall 
Amanda Z. Weaver 
Bradley R. Pollock 
SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P. 
400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-2202 
gmarshall@swlaw.com 
aweaver@swlaw.com 
bpollock@swlaw.com 
Attorneys for U.S. Bank National Association and Hilda Chavez 
 
Nicole M. Goodwin 
GREENBURG TRAURIG, LLP 
2375 East Camelback Road, Suite 700 
Phoenix, Arizona 85016 
goodwinn@gtlaw.com 
  

mailto:gmarshall@swlaw.com
mailto:aweaver@swlaw.com
mailto:bpollock@swlaw.com
mailto:goodwinn@gtlaw.com
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Paul J. Ferak 
Jonathan H. Claydon 
GREENBERG TRAURIG, LLP 
77 West Wacker Drive, Suite 3100 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
ferakp@gtlaw.com 
claydonj@gtlaw.com 

Attorneys for Defendant JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.,  
Samantha Nelson, Kristofer Nelson,  
Vikram Dadlani, and Jane Doe Dadlani 
 
 
  
8996229 

 
 

mailto:ferakp@gtlaw.com
mailto:claydonj@gtlaw.com
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VERIFICATION 
 

 Pursuant to Rule 8(h), Ariz.R.Civ.P., I, Peter S. Davis, as receiver for Plaintiff, 

DenSco Investment Corporation, an Arizona corporation, verify under penalty of perjury 

the foregoing is true and correct: 

1. DenSco Investment Corporation is the Plaintiff for the above entitled 
action. 
 

2. I have read the foregoing Plaintiff’s Supplemental Rule 26.1 Disclosure 
Statement and know the contents thereof. 
 

3. The statements and matters alleged are true of my own personal knowledge as 
the receiver for DenSco Investment Corporation, except as to those matters 
stated upon information and belief, and as to such matters, I reasonably 
believe them to be true. 

 
DATED this 24th day of May, 2021. 
 

DENSCO INVESTMENT 
CORPORATION, an Arizona corporation 
 
 
 
  
By: Peter S. Davis 
Its: Receiver 

 
 
































































































































































































































